SWORN STATEMENY
For yaa of his farm, 3ea AR 150-45; the proponent sguncy is DOCSOPS

PRVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHDRITY. Tithe 10 USC Section 3D1; Titke 5 USC Secnon 2951; £0. 9337 dated Novenber 32,1841 IS5K)
PRIKCIPAL PURPDSE: To piovite CoMMMers ang law Miarcement cthoals with mpans by which wlormation may be sccurstely idantified.
ROUTINE USES: Your 3ocal zecurity Aumber i paed a3 an additonal/attermate means of ientifation 19 facktata fing and retravel,
DISCLOSURE: Disciosere vl pour SUCial Yecunty numoe G VoLl —
!, LOCATION 2. DATE [YYVYMMDD) IME E NUMBER
Abu Ghrail, Irag, APO AE 09333 2004/04/2 2200

E. MIDDLE NAME 5. SSN — 7. GRADE/STATUS

3. ORGAM{ZATION OR ADDRESS ] N ]
66th MILITARY INTELLIGENCE GROUP, Deplayed to Abu Ghraib Correctiona) Facility, Abu Ghraib, Irag, APO AE 09333

9. - = 1
” WANT T0 MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH: '

 arrived at Abu Ghraib on 23 October 2003 to conduct inttrrogation operations. When I first arrived to Abu Ghraib, 1 received
a tour of the faciliGes, screening area, the living Support Areas and all the work areas. [ conducted a right seat ride with the
individual | was replacing. 1 received the Interrogation Rules of Engagement (IROE) and signed the IROE. 1 really didn't have
apy questions. It was predy clear what we could and could oot do. I bave never witness any abusc of detainees or photos of
deiainees by M! personnel, 1 did see one instance where a military dog wes used in the Hard Sitz. An Iragi police had managed
10 provide a detamee in the hard site with a pistol. Az wterrogation was oa going and the detain D crative and the
dogs were used. The dbg was in the cell with the detaipee. The dog was clos¢ 1o the interpre is happened in
Devember. | found out a detainee had been bitten that same night. This technique had to be approved by higher command and 1
was 1old this had been approved (the use of a dog). When we wanled to deviate from the approved TROEs wg had to a detailf
plan and get it approved by LTG SANCHEZ. COL Pappas was in charge and had control of operations and as in
charge of the lnterrogation Control Element. My belief was that BG Fast was in charge of the camp.

Q. Do you have anything to add to this statement?

A. No
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ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING ~S TATEMENT OF TAREN AT 0ATID ——

THE BOTTOM GF EADH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF YThE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT. ANG PAGE NUMBER MUST BF BE INDICA TED.
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STATEMENT OF — TAKEN AT ﬂvu Chra; .- DATED &1 ﬁ'n"f'f asdi
' . - 7 ! -
9. STATEMENT {Continusd) ’

™~

AFFIDAVIT

____ . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT _
wHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE_ ', ULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. + HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE DF BENEFIT DR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT. AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE OR FUL INDUCEMENT.

aking Starement)

1Signature of Pei

Subscnbed and swom 1o bafore me, a parson suthonzad by taw to

aeyol forl piedki
WA ST

WITKNESSES
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ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

-
{Typed Name of Passon Admint ]
UCW S Aticly (3C
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS tAUthariry To Adminisier Osths)
INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMEN —I !
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AUTRHOMTY. T )
FRIBCIPAL PURPDSE:
AQUTINE USES:

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT :
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BIECLOSURE: X L"'ﬂm——"“‘—u”?we — o T
2004/ <
- . GRABESTATES
S B E-B/NG

2, ORGANUIATHAN UR ADDRESS
7204 Military Police

Cuompany. 991 Troop Command, Army National Guard

priginally going to house 10 overllow,

the interrogation facihiry.
the M1 personnel than the
teponed Lo
wrong. as the 0

siruation was urunediately reponed ta

on the lights or bangig on the door.

1. EXHIBIT

03, all detainees AG were criminal.

after the incident.
aly thing he asked was
dehydraied but there was o permanent damage. For !
was suained. There was also a Siluaiion wp MI personncl and 80 inlefprewes conducted an unauthorized in
und COL PAPPAS who look immediate meps 10 rectify the snianon.
end of Jul, the crununal prisoners were ransferved 10 Camp Gancey in preparsion of a suspected influx of security detainoes
associated with operauan VICTORY BOUNTY. | did winess delainecs on ad}und sieep schedules. The schedule. for the
desaince was posted on e oulside of the exll. MI personnel would do most 0 the waking

At pee point, M1 personnel would beat on rash cans 10 wake up the delyinee, Once we
found out aboul this, the activity siopped. Dusuiz the titial set up of the inlCITOEation sitz, we Jent the ML personne] 1ents and

- | escorted the detainess 10 and from the interrogation site. The interrogation sitz consisted of 3 couple of 1ents thal were open on
sides which allowed personne) 1o see the tonduc of the interrogations. In Sep 03. GEN MILLER visiied AG. He spent mst of

force. curing back on securry personnel

WANT TD MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

From 23 May D3 10 15 Oct 03, 1 was deployed 10 J:bY Ghraib (AG) a2 the 15G of tbe T2nd MP Cogpany. My company's mul

was 10 mmehu:il'nymmdmmmmmmp:wmuMaMWn!mwm
orﬁmrsp::‘r,un eventual fransition of AG imo lrag) conrol. When we arrived 31 the bard e, we found it w be

personnel armived at AG. There were no inerroganons conducted prior to the 203t M1 Bce personnel arrived. On occasion,

Judge Advocate General (JAG) personnel would come 10 Lhe facilily 1 imerview detainocs concerning wial issues. The Ml folks
arrived and began establishing 2 location t conduct screening and LRIETOEILON operations in preparation of 3 missioo W0
interTogale suspected SADAAM FETAYEEN members. The criminal detainces were moved 1o another pan of the fazilny 10
make way for Lthe security detainees which were going 10 be interrogated by MI1. The M1 folks borrownd 1ents from us 1o 12l
At one point Camp Vigilant housed about 700 security hoid

w
detainees, My company
nnel lived with us and used our Mmess facilities. In A nmnsrnn
d;ev:raldcuirlsmvdmﬂnm. 1 met with Dp snd
pusinuated he had with me for medical suppon. This was
e medical lent. Dociol d':dcuimu..m:aidlfww

a very shon period afier the incident, my relacionship

- The MP’s would help ous

morale was extremely Jow. Detainees were stryrped searched dunsg their mprocessing, but 1 pever witneased or beard of a
douaines bong stripped 53 8 form of humiliation. | have seen the pictures and cannot undersiand how it could happen.
depicted by the photos clearly fall outside the doctrinally authorized restraning jques. MP mraining calls for the restraint

(wilh | uffs cgation of uaruly detmnecs. b secmed to me that M1 was under Cotstant presse 1o report. On ome
occasion i elh:mmu'l'thcywm:undm;mmncdsetouachuhowwdomjob.'wm'm:me
sohsan h’mw of visulars, complancd that he had $2nt Up nUMErous requests throu

gh his cham of
requesting rules of eogagement of interrogating dewunees. winch he never f:::ivq!.IHHIHII_I;HIIH.‘IHHNHHHJ'I!HHII”HHHHHI:‘I

‘ T MAANME STATEMENY
- PAGE 1 OF

% unusable as il de
been ransacked. We buill up 3 nion of the onginal site and saned 1o Teceive detaimneses within four days. ntil e end of Jul
1 A P erimi The.minzflciiuy was in BIAP. The BIAP facility was overcrowded and AG was

LA PAGES

A

by turning

his time with the M1 folks, but he hiad an MP in oo the team who just explained some of e functions the MP's conducial
GTMO. Afer the GEN MILLER vi;il.l&m‘ mmenied that the MP's would end wp working {or M1, Other than

incidents discussed above, | never witnessed any detanee abuse or maltreatment while at AG. 1 never wimessed or heard of any
M1 person asking the MP's 1o abuse the detainess 10 help with inicrrogations, | never withessed or heard any MP olfer to abuse
deiainee to belp with interrogations. During my ume at AG. there were a constant flow of personnel coring through 1A. Al lhe
beginning of Oct 03, we staned our \ransizon with the 372nd MP Bn. The transition consisied of a walkthrough and 2
right-seal-nde which lasied approximately one week. One of the immediale changes the 3720d made was to Festructure the guard
at Camp Vigilant which resubied in several deninee escapes within days of their
iransition of authority. Afer deating with the 372nd MP'3 | had concerns in their ability w successfully conduct the mission at
AG. The umt had come directly from a mission in the south and scemed disiraughi sbout laking over another mission.

] feel ihed
The acrid

FHE BOTTOM DF EACH ADDSTIONAL PAGE WUST BEAR

AZDITDNAL PAGES MUST CONTAX TRE HEADING S TATEMENT OV

TARIN AT oanme

————

THE MOTIALS DF THE PERSON MAKING TAE STATEMENT, AND PAGE RUMBER MUST BE 06 MOICATED.
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STATEMENT OF —__—— tagny  _Henderson, NV pATED _2004/06/06

5, STATEMENT /Centiwec! )

Q: Do you have anything o aid 10 this statement?

A No.IIHIIII!IiHHHIUIHIHIHHNHH/HIHHHIHI H!I/fIHHfHl‘H!HH!H//H)'IHHllh'IHIIHIHIHIIIIHIIIHHHHU!HHHHHHNHHIHHN
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Pt AFFIDAYIT

1 o AT _KAVE READ DA HAVE HAD READ TD ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH £ 1. AND ENDS DN PAGE - CICLAREANE Tl CONTANTS 2 TRE (871 I STALCMERT LA
BYME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUS |MAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM DF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE 1HIS
STATEMENT FHEELY WITKOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT DB REWARD, WITKOUT THREAT DF PUNISHMERT. AHD WITHOUT CDERCION. UNLAWFUL INFLUENTE, DR UNLAWSUL SNDUZEMENT.

fSignatore #f Pertan Makang St

Subszrbed pad sworn Ta befuie me, & ptrsen duthoneed by aw o

WITNESSES.
saerugter w3ths, $us b gyl June , 2004
e Heness Nevad
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i (Typed Name of Perzon Mml IIH”
R : §1).5.C. 303
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' — SWORN STATERENT
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taiged in hard was inciuded {via eloctrogic dossier). Ome enure ‘
:)"IWMBNQ pot have an;pﬁ:mﬂl&mﬂhﬂd. The
Interrogation Plans. Knowledgability Briefs, Analysis Suppon Packages, Phows

axsessment, a MFR was cresicd containing multiple files. and was signed b
20MAYD4 and DIJUNEDS a)l the completed files (ongnal files) that were DeiDE maintained were Uansferred the
terrogated” an eiectronic MFR is treaed and contained within the BATS Dambase. The file is then

e cetainer is considered 1o be "Not Acuvely Imerrogaed”, e file is tansferred to
I MFR it created contaimng muttple files. This MFR 15 checked by CM&D for o *equiranents, and

rmaititaio e DA Form 200. The second meihod was sdopied primarily W expedile e of dewinees
wielligence value or not being acuvely interrogated from ME Hold. (R wd wo did
wock Coc, BiCACL , G Do You Havi Anybiveg W ADD Ye TV

. Explanstion, Ascsement, e iog,
o atseruncnt was mads, the detainee's file was organized and sot
Cogiens and additiogal Comments. Ouce ap : '.:m“wnkmdwgsmpy‘ DAB

: oy gy 11 - O Ao she eaisting flles achaded Imerropation Nows,
mainisiaed witin e DAB. Addiveasl eporing it v LS VS ol P, DIlks, and Tlks. Exscatilly. o

interviews and assessmzais were 5o longer required The focus then became expediting the back-log of files. Al aciive files
were organized, revicwed, aad & recommendalion was made Based entircly on the information comained within te packet.

Toe organization of files is the same as smpd previously, all Teporting thal was S0t preseai in e hard copy file, bt
present i the electronic dossier was printed and sdded to the bard copy file. Flhlmwm. instaed

all we acuve fies were iransferred to the Magisuate Cell and » completed DA Form 200 was maintaioed by the DAR. Afer
the back.log of active files was transferred 'to the Magusurate Cell, the number of personael in e DAB was reduced. Bﬂmnr

Cell and said wansactions were recorded on DA Form 200 which are maintained by the DAB, Currently, detainet's files are
f;ocemd tarough the')IDC in ooe of two ways. The first way is, once the detatoer i derermined to be .Nmmﬁ'ﬁ

ICE 10 CM&D. and if CM&D does not idetify any ouistanding requiserpents aod filt iz trasferred 10 the DAB. Ouoce in the
DAB the file is organized (same as suied previously). reviewsd, and an assesxuenl is made based ou the informitico
coplained in e file. Tbe electronic MFR is compictd, printed, signed by te JIDC Direcior, and added to e flle. The
dewupee 13 then removed from M1 Hold, CM&D s ootified. the file is then mansferred 1o the Magisvawe Cell, and s -
completed DA Form 200 is maintined t record the AOsACUOD. The second method ﬂpmpulh‘nrlhﬁl:q iz as follows: Omce

1o Operations where 1t 1s signed by the JIDC direcior. The complcted MFR ix scor w0 the DAB and the detainee’y contained
withiin the MFR are removed from M1 Held, and CM&D is soified. “The files arc them wransferred 1o the Magisusie Cell by
Operatons. Whes files are processed in this manner, it 5 tbe responsibility of JIDC Operstion 1o organize the file and

. Packet

back -

Y ATE e W 9'.”0_—————5#’0 oFf STATEMmEA —

———

——
T —— m———’

—_— —-
——— . N -
——— -/

— p—

JUCT et ws (o]

Lan WAL 6 W aTEMENT ﬁ
[T 21 I g /3

ADDITOUHAL PAGES MIST CONTAN THE KEADMG “STATFMENT 0 __ TAKENAT  ____ DATED ____ CONTWUED.
THE RO Y108 OF EACA ADDITDNAL PAGE MUST SEAR TE IWTIALS DF THE PERSON MALNG THE STATFMINT AND BE METIALEG AS “PARE

o Of ____ PAGES WEW ADDIONAL PAGES ARE UTALIED. THE BAZX OF PAGE 1 WYL &1 LD OUT. AND THE
STATEMENT Wil BE CONCIDDEC DN TRE R YENSE SIDE OF SO0 THER COPT OF Tt JOAN.

DA FORM 2823, JUL72 SUPERSEDES DA FORM ZHT. 1 JAN B0, WHITH Wi BE USED.

RGOOODE55

DOD 000742



[ STATEMENT [Laotawen/
~.

. e
N e
\ '
~ e
. d
\.\. P e d
.
N
,AJ C)‘T'x'!!!/LASSE:C)
SN
e N
/’4/
/_
/ L
//'/ \
//
Ve
pd

AFFIDANIT

GINS ON FAGE ) AND ENDS DN PAGE

HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT

FULLY LIRDERS TAND THE CONTENTS DF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE | HAYT INITIALED ALL SOTMCCTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | KAYE MADL THiS
STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT MCFE OF BENEFIT DR AEWARD, WITKOUT THREAT O PUN SHMENT, AND WITHOUT CUERCION. UNLAWEUL INFLUENTE, OR URLAWFUL INDUCEMENT. k La,

WITNESSES Subscrised sad swoim 19 betore me, 1 person mthoriced by isw 1o
xmaeasinr aaths, the qr- dyst S At wot
n THiyD™ o, BC.C = Tt
[&]
ORGANIZATION OR AODRESS gt ture of Person Adwarcsteng Dath)
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NG S ke 136
QRGANIZATION OR ADDARESS fAutannty Ta Adnanster Daths)
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DAMI-ZD 29 May 2004

MEMROANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Interview ot
On 29 MAY 2004 at 0815, MG GEORGE R. FAY, USA, nadm
her rights (details are on the DA 388 l)“u’c'ﬁed her rights 10 obtain a lawyer. No questionin

was initiated an as given 3 copy of DA Form 3!8!“:: with Army lawyer“
54* LSO TDS
Devens, Massachusetts 01432.

:J

, M}
Investigating officer
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SWORN STATEMENT
For use of this form, see AR 190-45; the proponent Bgency is ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Titie 10 USC Section 301; Tite 5 USC Secton 2951; E.O. 8367 dated November 22,1943 [SSN).
PRINCIPAL To provide commanders and law enlforcement officials with means by which informaton may be accurately wenthec
ROUTINE USES: Your social seCurity number is used 35 an additional/atternate means of identification o facilitate fikng and retnova:
DISCLOSURE: Disclosure of your 30ci8| secufty number 1s voluntary.
1. LOCATION 2. DATE {YYYYM 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER
Metro Park Springfield, VA 2004705/ OAD0D

6. SSN 7. GRADE/STATUS

L B SPCIEA
8. ORGANIZATION DR ADDRESS

B Conmpany. 2d Military lmelligence Banslion, 66th Military Intelligence Group, Darmstadt. Germany

]
m _WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT LINDER OATH:

1 am a Human Inteiigence (HUMINT) Collector/Interropator (MOS 97E) assigned to B Co, 66th Military Intelligence (MI) Group,
Darmstadt, Germany, currently atached to the 202nd M Banslion (BN) at Abu Gursyb (AG), Iraq. I deployed to Kuwait along with
11 other 66th MI Group personnel on 15 Oct 03. 1 amved at AG on 19 Qct 03. I was on a Rest and Relaxation leave from § 40 25
Apr03. Upon arnival at AG, we received a briefing concermng the breakdown of AG operations, the Tiger Team configuration
being used at AG, and Interrogation Rules of Engagement {IROE). 1read the IROE slide and nothing, other than the presence of
military working dogs, surprised me. We were then spbt up 1nto vanous seclions and paired up with interrogators who were alreagy
experienced with AG operations. | conducted my first 1n ation on 21 Oct Q3. [ can not recall my first section leader because it

was for anly abaut a week. My second section teader was hile | was assigned to A, _Section. lihen moved 1o
the Special Projects Team and my supervisor w. 1 predominately worked with interpretc
'aile with A Section, [ was paired up with a staff sergeant irom the Guantanama

3 . Cuba, name nown as{gill#1 personally obscrved three incidents which | believe were mcidents of
sta)pee ahuse. 1 provided this suformation in a swaorn staiement 10 Aoy CID on 21 Jag 02 (CID File Number

0003-04-CTD 149-83130), and mare details can be found 1p that s t The first incident was what | believed at the ime
to be an accident when s Military Policeman (MP) mmcw escorting 3 defzinee do ight of stairs in the AG
hard site. The detainee was hand-cuffed, leg-thackled, and had a sandbag over his head. A brigging him down

the stairs, the insmate appeared to tip and fall on the stairs is jneident was reported
The second incident also involve nd a cooperatng detainee narned
was ¢ Lebanese nationial raised in SyTis. ha resided in either Ganci or Vigilant, requested

crned for hus safety because he was cooperahng with Coslpion Forges. When 1 arrived at the hard site with
sged "is thas your guy?” and roughly put a sand bag ovcHead d hegan o pull him ronghly

was caught of guard by the harsh mestment, but then wniervened an asked wmw.

ouded with sametiung to e eficet 1y e one of the good guys”. When said he was en took the

thal be was going to sm own, but dig not have a jump
1w Officer-in-Churge (OIC), an tervened 10
Juthes re maemny detainee aod he nover mentioned any further abuse 2 ter this incident

MU <0t ccurred in Late Dec 0% or zarty Jan (4 and involved o reluctant Baath Party General Officer named S0
kuow as had a sleep roanagement pian which was approved by COL PAPPAS (205th MI BDE Commnder). ['way in
Cell Bloc O [OC hard sitc, which was the arca of the hard site dedicated to female and juvenile derainees. I had

beld in the shower arca of 1B when I witnessed ap MP guard and an MP Working Dog Handler with his dog entered 1B. 1do not
\mow either of their names. however, investigators showed me digital photagraphs this day of an MP Working Dog Handler. The
MP Handler involved 1 the incident wes the same as the MP Handicr in digiat pholographs numbered as 0196/CG LAPS, 00$4/CG
LAPS, and 0213 CG LAPS. The dog was & large, black, breed which appeared 1o be a mix of Labrador Retmever and Belgian
Sheppard. It was the only black working dog at AG. The dt was ag 8 Icash, but was not muzzled. The MP guard and MP Dog

E, MIDDLE NAME

SUlL 19 188y
have
The

Handler opened a cell i which two juvendes, one known as(” Casper”) were houscd. The Dop Handler allowed the dog o enter the
cell and po nuts oo the kids, barking and scarmg them The Kids weré screaming, the smaller one hiding behind The
Handler aliowed the dog 10 get withie abaut one foot of (e kuds. ARerward. | heard the Dog Handler say that be had 2 competilen
with anctaer Handler to see if they could scare detaunees to the poiel that they would defecate. He mentioned that they bad slready
made some unnate, so they appeared o be raising the compeanon. This happened about 0100 and 1 returned to my quarters for the
night. | torgot about repornng it the next day and did not remember 1t until Lﬁe CID 1vestgators came 10 talk to my in Jun 03.
mcidenlullygmled in the mortar aftack oo Abu Garayb on Apr 03. 1 never witessed, nor ever heard of anyone
Lng unau el p raphs or videotape of detainces. | never beard anyone mlking about "softening up" delginees in
preparauian for wterrogations. | was told b)p‘-mm the GTMO Team that | was permitted as the interrogator to Siip ==

1C. EXHIBIT 11 INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT

PAGE10OF __1 AGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STATEMEN TAKENAT ____ DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS DF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT. AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED. ’
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e areverr o (SN 1.1 Meoodit VA paveD 200405+ QI

§. STATEMENT [Contiwed) . K ] o
detsinee completcly paked in the nterro 1 never used this perscually, The oaly incident Lever
B e s tchaique 1 do pot have amy first hand keowiedge of thal incid
told me that I could nse warking nduidmlh:hdmd_lhmmwbr. hu_mmcqufbe d lsed

21 GTMO or AG. 1 aaver 5 uxbWufnyhmcenMdopmpdunnmm‘ 1
sever questioned the veracity o 'W' $ mputofmgmﬁ:hqdm_uunl_huh_ ]
detaipees and giving them cgarettes, building mmlwﬂumdbm.mm;wmmm
their calis. l-inquimdahuu‘g:'udw' by the MPs that q.dnn_lhwnu'hmmhnﬂhm. 1did
ree some detainees in women's underwear, but this sppearsd to ba by choicr, bot a8 # punishment or harsssment. There simply
waz nol enough meo's underwear (o go avound. Simce Cell Biock 1B of the bard site housed the fermale detainces, the hard bt 1
n.-ceivednhipmuofwm‘aundemwud;ppmnwhadﬂmmthﬂmnﬂ'audmhmluuh:mm "

. few dealin ndthOGAmddonuthow&eu-rm"hondeuhu'.Imwmmq!mwmmtmp
&iﬁ&yﬁuﬁpwﬂhlmOGAdcumushve“_itdformdlﬁgOGAwhngMthmlhc
' 30is_ohﬁonlﬂ’ o rule, Onmlymﬁu' | recommanded s detainee for an extrasion past the 30 deys. Tha & wasan

Iranian same lng::ﬁaﬂth!h:bel‘xmhﬂilhohﬁmdulh.hﬁnﬂﬂl: tability
i fi ta' Gndhuwmmdmﬁmdbshwl rsyward violencs while in isoltic. 1t was
Rm;b:ul'l:; bad been biten by police umhiuuwmmhd.-lwgnpcheckm
saw thar he had bites on his thighs. When | ask hdhmdhnﬂﬁu&c_do;bum:md
to cry, ind asked 10 be senl back to Iran. He was preseot 15 digi photogriph 0174/CG , Bhown 1o m: this day by
i T .
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AFFIDAVIT

m_. HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHIDH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, ARD ENDS ON PAGE_J) LY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME THE STATEMENT 1S TRUE 1 HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT | MAVE MADE THMIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BRENEEIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION. UNLAWFUL INF NT.

g Staiameni)

WITNESSES / Suby and pwom 10 belome i B parson Suthoned by lasw to

semurusier caths, tha __ 235 oay ol May ., 2004
- 1. VA

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS “ VAR SR / lemrogn ATPEIENND 4
— v : . -
—— =
Parzon Aominstenng Ustn)
UCML. ARITCLE 136
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Autnorty To Admaater Oaiha)
INITIALS QF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT W
o 4, ! . PAGE W7 s

PAGE 3, DA FORM 2833, DEC 19491 : L T

AGOOO00659

DOD 000746






PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Sectian 301: Tithe 5 USC Saction 2851; E.0. 9397 datad Nevamber 22, 1943 /5SS
PRINCIFAL PURPOSE: To provide commencs’s and law mforcament eliicials with mesns by wiich miommslion May M cratly dentifed.
ADUTINE USES: ‘ Your sotial sacuity number o ued o3 M1 additionalwtamaly mesas of ideniihcation 1o facilcats fing and retreval
DISCLOSURE: Divclasure of your soca Securiiy nomber 19 voluntery
1, LOCATION 2. DATE mrrmw 3. TIME 4. FILENUNBER
CRYSTAL CITY, VIRGINIA 2004/05/1 i

: : E R 6. 55N 7. GRADE/STATUS
Gl _ =

8. GRGANIZATION DR ADDRESS
B/CO, 470th MILITARY INTELLIGENCE GROUP, CAMP BULLIS, TX 78234

8
- , WANT T0 MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

I arrived at Abu Ghraib in Mid October 2003. When | first artived, ] was asked if 1 wanted to work in the Fusion Analysis Cell
{FAC). There were only a few soldiers with Top Secret Clearances and | was one of them. I agresd t work in the FAC. There
were a total of five individuals working in the FAC. My focus was on the Foreign Fighters and Extremist Cell. We would bring
together ail intelligeace on these groups from the mterrogation reports. From the reports, we would develop link analysis and
analytic asscayments. 1 didn't really do interrogations, but did sit in op a few. 1 was asked to help the ivterrogators and better
guide them with specific guestions to assist in gathering intelligence. When ] first srmived, | didn't geceive wraining on the
[nierrogation Rules of Engagement (IROEs) or the Geneva Convention. There was onc time whwm a
formation and told everyone (o read the JROEs and sign them (this was prior to the CID investigatioh). We were then given
updated [ROEs and a class oz them when the 202d M1 BN assuroed responsibility of the JIDC, This was time in February
2004, At the ume ] ammived, | believe LTC JORDAN was in charge. Once mH;;. I was piaced in
charge of the FAC. | worked in the FAC the enare ume | was at Abu Ghraib With the exception of six weeks when | left to work
in a Tacucal HUMINT Teamn at the entry conwrol point. | never witmessed or heard of any 1mmcc abuse. The only thing ciose
10 it was: when we first arrived, The GTMO SGT took us on a tour of the facility. While in the Hard Site, we saw the MPs had
two detainees in the middle of the cell. They were naked with a bag over their bead, standing on MRE boxes and their hand
spread ot cach holding a bottle in each hand. | asked if this was nght. [ was wold by the GTMO (NCO)that this was the MP's

“ | way of disciphrung detawnees and that it was normal. Apparent]y the detainees had trnied to stab some other detainee. 1 belicve
tha 00tk M) in Japan)} was also with me__| have never seen or heard of pictures and videos of detaipees prior 1o
the CID investigation. Afier the investigation, - a girl he believed to be an MP with pictures of detainees. -He
came o me o tell me about i | told him 10 t¥e it 10 CID and report it. 1 saw dogs being used a few umes. The detainess were
1o the back of a Humvee with the dog handlers and the dogs. The detainees were sitting on one side while the dog handler was
sitting on the opposite side.  The dogs were next to the dog handler. 1 koow the drivers and passengers were M, interTogators
end/or analysis. 1 recognize one civilian. He had blood haur. a poatee, was chunky, about 27-28 years old, and about 5'7 or 5'8.
From my understanding, they would atways have prior approval 1¢ use the dogs. Dogs were also used for crowd control along

the conceruna wire. There were two analyst who w ansierred wmito mmy section because they were no longer allowed to
interrogate. These two, chr: grcwumandmg soldiers. ¢ two individuals
came 1o me (separately} With cgpeerns of something they had done. Id me that 't mvolved that
he went 10 the JIDC and asked! g with furn becausé he wanted 1o show him something  They went to lhi =:rd

sile where the MPs had several™detainees naked on the floor and a nerf bal] w ing thrown at the detainees. Apparentl
Ol wnto it and threw a netf ball al the dewainees  Afier they lefi { ked he was olcay because

he locked congern. They told me they were afzid and they wanied my advice. | told each that they ed 1o get some legal
advice. 1 lold‘Mﬂ:cy told me they knew about it and thai 1 should not have been told about this.
I went ahead nd reported i1 to CID just in cas® they had nol heard. They said they knew bout it. The only other incident that I

heard of which might have been considered bumiliauon was when a dewainee wanted to smoke. The MPs let him smoke but they
made him smoke the entire pack within 30 minutes while he did PT 1o reference to OGA detainees, 1 only dealt with this
situation once. | wanted 1o speak to one of thewr detawnecs who was a foreign fighter and belonged to OGA. | asked and was told
be would not come to me but that ] would be able 10 see the report OGA wrote up on SIPR. | never got it or saw it. One of the
problems we had was shazing information or obtamning intormauon with other units conducting interrogauons. ‘The reports would
be posied on the portal or a sunilar site, but the wterrogator notes were not posted. One tirme | saw 2 report that would have beend
very helpful 10 me 2 month previous. 1 began 10 make back chanpels w share information with other interrogators, ‘This worked
out great but my leadership got mad for domng that. | kept doing it because there was information they had whi d s
lop bink analysis diagrams and write analytic assessments | was shawn some photos. .Photo #23 show
king at oaked detainess. Photo #11 in file named CG Lapmark shows a female interpreter (name unkpown) and,
3 CACI mwerrogaior. There was another photo which sbowndém wterpreter working with one of the Military Policf %7

10. EXHIBIT ‘ T). IMTIALS OF SERSON MAKING STATEMENT i —
. | PasE 1 0F PABES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE KEAGING “STATEMENT OF

TAKEN AT OATED _

THE BUTTOM OF EALN A0DTIORAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE IKITIALS OF THE FERSON MAXING THE STATEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER MUST BE BE INGICA TED.
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0. STATEMENT (Cowtiound! .
Q. Do you pave anything else to add to this sutement

A. No!
I s Statement/ I L L L

~

. AFFIIAYIT .
L . HAVE READ DR HAVE HAD READ T0 ME THIS STATEMENY
WHICH BEGIN . _ 2.5 I FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. ) WAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AN HIWE NPT IALED THE BDTTOM OF EACH PASE CONTAIMING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS
STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HORE OF BENEFST OR REWARD, WITHDUT THREAT OF PUNISHMEKT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, OR UNLAWFUE INDUCEMENT.

! {Signatise of Poscn Mabing Strveceat!

Subscribed and swom to bedors ma, & person authorzed by lew te

WITNESSES:
pominis 12 naths, this JBth eyl MAY , 2004
a CRYSTAL CITY, VIRGINIA _
ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS {Sopnatuce of Porsan Adminstering Dath]
¥, Adeauinistening Dath)
UCMJ, ARTICLE 136
DAGANIZATION O ADDRESS {Autharity To Admisster Gaths/
INITIALS DF PERSON MAKING su'rmsna ot ? F
PAGE 3 PAGES
PAGE 3. DA FORM 2823, DEC 1938 UBAPA YD
AGDOD0661

DOD 000748






SWORN STATEMENT :
For use of Thia form  ses AR 190-4%; tha proponent is ODCSOPS
LOCATION DATE TIME FiLE NUMBER
Building B30, Camp Victory, Irag i 12 Junci !004 i3 F
LAST NAME, FIRST NAME, MIDDLE NAME SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER ORADE/STATUS

SPCIUSA

ORGANIZATION DR ADDRESS
37204 Miliaary Police, Camp Victory, Irag

. WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

| revicwed seversl pho::flph.! of the alleged detainee sbuse al Bu!phd Ceatral Corrections Facility, Irag and was able to

identify the following individuals assigned 10 the 372nd Mitiary Police: Photograph labe ] g _

depicts 3 Tinn linguist whose first name | the Jeft. | do not recall his just nazme. Themdmdu;_‘:n|
M SOy n ding

the right is Photograph labeled : ¢
on the lefi of the pholo@. m labeled . i eis ) |
Photograph lubeled . 10 the night of the dog
handier 1o & tap cop. SN : s to the right Thel
individual standing behind the bars ou the le ceman, who NAmE is URKHOWR 1o me. Q|
Lo vou have anything 1o add 1o 1his staterment. A p END &F STATEMACNT —7f

N

ExmBiT INTIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT —'
l PAGE 1 OF ___4__ PAGES

ADDITIDNAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING "STATEMENT OF TAKEN AT ___ DATED_____ CONTINUED.®
THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST 8EAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMENT AND BE INTIALED
AS "PAGE____ OF PAGES." WHEN ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE UTILIZED, THE BACK OF PAGE 7 WiLL BE UNED oUT, AND THE
STATEMENT WiLL BE CONCLUDED ON THE REVERSE SIDE OF ANOTHER COPY OF THIS FORM.
DA FORM 2823, JUL 72 . SUPERSEDES DA FORM 2823, 1 JAN BB, WHICH WiLL BE USED. VIAPPC V1 10
- AGDOD066E2

DOD 000749



STATEMENT (Continued/

i

‘ . AFFIDAVIT

D ENDS ON PAGE

HiCH BEGINS ON PAGE Y

CONTAINING THT STATEMENT

WiTNESSES

OAGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

ULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE

BY ME THE STATEMENT IS TRUE | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AN
{ HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY wWITHO!

THAEAT OF PLAISHMEN™ AND WITHOUT COERCION WNLAWFU.

| HAVE AcAD OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT

D HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
UT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REW, HOUT

Pl W banld WIS

INFLENCE, OR L8
ISfyn-rur_e of Person Making Stetemant!

Subicibed snd sworn 1o before me, & person authanzed by law to
sgminister oaths, tas 1201 day of June L1 04
s Buildine B30, Camp Victory, Irag
= . — m o L = Whigillhde.'

. S
ISignaiure of Persondarmmistenng Qarhi

- —

’ ﬂype! Name of Person Admristerng Dath)

UCMJ, Arucle 136 —
{Authority To Adrminstar Osths)

ORGANIZATION OR ACDRESS

l P&G? 2 of i_! PAGES

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT!

UBAPPC YL ID

AGO000663
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— PRIVACY ACT ETATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Tiis 10 USC Bection 301; Tite § USC Section 283 1; E.0. 3387 dated November 22, 1943 [SSN/.

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: 7nmmwwuﬂmoﬂi&hﬁﬂ|mhmhﬁmﬁnmhucmm
ROUTWNE USES: Your social security number is used 88 a0 additionelaitrnate means of identification 10 facikitate fiing and retievel
DSCLOSURE: Dizcloswrd of your sacisl sacurity number is vohunitary, .

1. LOCATION 2. DATE 1vyyy, 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER

METRO PARK, SPRINGFIELD, VA 200410613“ 1§73

7. GRADE/STATUS
SGT

. LAST NAME, F [ SS.
ATION OR ADDRESS ' - ‘

WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

rrived at Guantanamo (GTMO) Bay on July 03. Afier three month on site
Qcto! 3. 1deployed as 2 member of a GTMO team consisung of CW.
lyst) focused on selzini up the fusion ce
placed on the Extremis ure_ilgn Fighters, 1 plus b
n of Former Regime Elements Tiger Team and m , AD 1nterrogator. Our mission at Abu Ghraib was o b
- and belp them ger back on track. § wasa 't there 1o teach inriTogation techniques. 1 would say |
s very knowledgeable on interrogation operations and preses ibilites down to the soich iR,
and cxpecled me to completc if. He took iers and wanted the needs of th . & hard
working Marine who does everything by the book. as quiet but did a gooddab . .
spoke fus mipd and wasn't afraid to speak out. He rience as he thought.
wntelligent dividuals | know. He wanted to jump mio things more than he should have? Fie knew his
arrived, we setiled i and | was gived 3 tour of the Hard Sue, Camp Vigilant and Ganci. Within two
the Interrogatiop Rules of Engagement  The first day 1 armived, | was told to conduct an imterragation.
file of the dewiee.  She told roe that some dewinees were 1o sleep deprivation and some on dietary : "
detainee who apparently was a Foreign Fighter from Syna () can't recall seeing on the file if the detainee was on sleep
deprivanon o g L Tianaoeraen hano d . . . Regime Tines W,

ILSLDILUES were o prionuze detamees for interrogauons. separaie soUrCES with interTogators, proofread xll reports the
UREITORALOIS ON MY teatn wrole and most of the admimstrative tasks for e team, | was the first authorization {or approval of
IMerTogatoDn techmques to be used dunng an interroganon My wam would reques; o detainee to in xnd i2ll me the

ches they were powng lo use. | would make the decision 1o approve and then forward them
: sign off the interrogation plan and (cchiuques o be used. Those requiring a
d she wowld send 1t up. The requests were submuned T™wo (o three days prior 10 e approval because
" | would A

they
© to pet back. My 1eam submified a request for & siress position (stress positions were authorized when 1 first got
there) w be used apanst odiras the head of a cell of a mortar ieam who was firing mortars at our troops,

The team members wer Tbe techrugue to be used was to have the detainee sit against the wall.
- T oversaw the Ihfcrrogation and afier a few minutes, [ told them ©
also requesied to inlerrogate a deminer paked. The request was farward -and it was
DOt &

J#Pproved. | oversaw Woe imierrogauon and afier a coupie of munutes, | told them to stop because 1 beli
productive technique . ] had heard about pakedsess a1t GTMO, but [ never used it. Most of the detainees we had had
unielirgence value and were brought 1o us by the 41D ] would oversee some of the interrogations and the majority of the
interropatos techrugues werc Lhe direct approach, fear up and pride aod ego down. | would 1
interropators scream and vell tut no physical abuse was conducted. ] worked mainly with
manpower was low and that 1s why beheve 1 was placed 23 2 sccuon leader. | stil) had a respensibility 1o ovensee
impiemenipg the Tiger Team Concept. | was oot able 1o wruly mentor the other 1rams because | was pretty busy with my Szctics

ITr,am Leagd ibiliwes. Once more personoe) arrived from the 66t MI, 47 M1, I nurned over
. d ) w uen ieader ve the i 500th) '
_ n :sm)m;im 1661, 661h), th) mm
! ) While on th . 1 never $aW any detamnee abuse  One of

hies ag eiln Member Was

classes on Cultural environment. . What was that | was there to belp implement the Tiger Team concept and § was
placed as a secuon leader on a Tiger Tu“

1C EXMIBIT DN e S BFASON MAKING STATEMENT | —__
1= (E-MAILS) : | PAGE 1 OF PAGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT TAKEN AT ____ DATED

a few

The

THE BOTTOM OF FACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STA TEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST BE BE INDICATED :

DA FORM 28B23. DEC 1998 DA FORM 282). JUL 72. IS OBSOLETE sass vieo
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DOD 000751



fsrarement o U - . SPRINGFIELD. VA oareo 2004/05/04

STATEMENT (Continued . _ ) »
one of the other Tearn membess had 1o give classes or placed in a leadership posi
were not allowed o conduct interrogations in GTMO unlike, at Abu Ghraib, whe an 2nalyst was allowed 1o

conducting interrogations. The GTMO Team would get together every once naw ] ta

Tiger Team Concept was going on and on how the interrogation plans and files were coming along. !

were focused on establishing a database and mahngr;urt everyone could find it and gather informati ol I y were able to

properly train other analysts by sitting with them. They didn't have to write reports but they reviewed some. In refereace to

GHOST DETAINEES: Onc day whep ] came on shift, | was told by someone that a detainec bad died the night before [
ﬂ us

ere misused. Analysis

bappened was that OGA chained a detainee up in the shower area and the detaines ended up dying. | went
d i d a problem with what OGA did to this Detainee ppened could come back al

ouble. aid that OGA had their own rules. ] then went to; old me the same thing. My
CONCCIT Was cy werc being placed in the cell without being documented, | tol hat the OGA tssue needed 1o
be changed and he agreed that they needed to change it. After | moved from the Tiger Team, | wab goung to be placed as the
coordinator with OGA, but that didn't happened. | didn't see OGA treat their detainees any different than the MI detainees. One
day when ] was walking thraugh the Hard Site, | remember sccing naked detainees in the Iragi Police site (MPs area). 1 do not
know why they were paked. | saw them naked every once in a while (about weekly). 1never questioned the MPs. Anyone who
walked through the area should have seen the same thing ] saw. In reference o ladies underwear: 1 remember onc MP puta
detainee in underwear. The MP was an African American male and an E-5. 1 believe be said that the detainee was placed in pink
 siiky women's underwear because the detainee was being punished for something he. did wrong. [ did 1t get any other
- informaticn on why the detainee was in silk panues_m»vu in a cell on the sccond floor and anyone who walked by

could see this. 1 didn't report it because [ knew tha would walk around daily smd would sec this. 1 saw some
detainees shackled 1o the bed bars, but never o my (Cam s . The MPs ran the cages and they knew [ was one of the
GTMO guys and they didz't mess with my detainées or me. | would 121l them that if they do not touch my detainees unless ] told
them specifically to do somethung. We would sugpest 1o the MPs what we wanted them to do 1o the Detainees, i.c., give them
more food, but we had control of our detainees. | was not at the Hard Site the night of the shooting on 24 November. 1 was
voluntzered 1o po. § had heard that there was a detainee who bad a weapon in the cell and that the MPs were yelling at him "Drop

it. Dropit!" The detainee would not drop the weapon. The dHMB and our MPs fired back. | did not see this.

No one really had a duty when | arrived. | am aot sure if- 11 wa ho came up with a plan. There was a Detaincc
who was siting in 2 vehicle (he had good knowledge of who wa ormer Fedayeen). We would take the Iragi Police and be
" twould identify them as a Former Fedayeen o1 pot. His results were very accurate with names we already had. Once identified as
s, (hey were set aside to lwuoncd. That individual selected to question the selected individuals was

and he had hus interpreter, did one intcrrogation that evening in the storage arca off 1o the side of the

. e became part of the group who kept the Iragi Police quiet (Shut Up Group). 1 did see dogs that evening. They
iwere checking the cells. At one time, the dog almost id bite the handier. [ do pot kmow if the detainecs were
ol in there that evening. id do one interrogation, 1 found out he was

jn the cells wh } |

| questioning th reporter, when { found . o slop because this was my detainee. He stopped. There
twas nothung viflaung the IROE m that particular Interrogaton. The MP's conducted a search F i
{on amy pons passibly smuggled in the Hard Sue  The next day, I was on a team with

1andtho checked all the IPs from the next shift [ did thys until 1 left. The only thifig ciose 10 dctamee a t
saw Was when a detainee was being forced fed with an [ Y. | was wid s was 1o help him eat. The MPs would hold him down
iwhule tbe 1V was on lum I did hear that before [ got there two interrogators from Fort Bragg had inte

detainee
twithout approva! and they were crrogation operauons. 1here was also the incident with%c nighl.l
had taken her out of interrogations because she had walked a naked detal back

J of the incident, she told me that
trom inte ' asked mec cw what actjons they would takc against her and | told ber She was in trouble.  After the
incndcnmhad a formation and told evervone 1o make sure they were following the TROEs and we had o sign them
again. al worked in Lhe nigh! shift knew about the incident, but it ; who were on the day shift did not
know what happened. | saw an MP (E-6 with Mustache, later identified as h I also identified the

{emale the phote was taken of 1n onz of the photos prigas ator ¢ a picture of a
female detainee who was leaving the Hard Site. | lolw.nat e was not authorized (o hav®'a camera or take
piceures, | also told tum that 1f 1 find out he 15 king photes of M| Detainees, he was going to deal with me. . | asked of the DISK]
and | destroyed the disk. 1 never reported the wcident o hugher. | do pot kmow why he had the camera in the hard site and 1 do
ROt know w, : itk their detainees, but | 1old him not to mess with the M[ Hold. Soon after that, | deparied IRAQ. | was
e-roailed bmon several occasions where he told me of the iovestigation going on and provided some questions being
asked. rovided (hose e-mails Lo the Investigative Team as pant of this siatement. I was alse ordered not to d.\*

anythung about thus investigation with anyone. Q. Is therc anvihung eise you would like to add to this statement? A, N
et R LN L TEND OF STATEMENTHUHI T 1

(NITIALS OF PERSON MA & EMENT ! -
PA OF 3 PpAGES

PAGE 2. DA FORM 2823, DEC 1998 USAPA VY00

AGODOO0665

DOD 000752



|o. STATEMENT (Continued)

AFFIDAVIT

I . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE I FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. } HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT . | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT GF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION. UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE, OR UNLAWFUL INDUCEMENT.

sking Statement)

Subscribed and sworn to betore me, » person suthorized by law to
adrumster osths, this _4TH  day of JUNE ., 2004
ot METRO PARK, SPRINGFIELD VA

'l T;JES;S;

AR 7

CRGANIZATION COR ADDRESS

ignature of Person Adrniniatering Oal

{Typed Name of Parson Administering Dath)

UCMI. ARTICLE 136
{Authority To Admirvster Oaths)

ORGAKNIZATION OR ADDRESS

| INITIALS OF PEASON MAKING STATEMENT

OF GES

PAGE 3, DA FORM 2823, DE@ 1988 UEAPA Y 1,00
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MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

On 10 Junc 2004 at 1010 hrs, I called at (360) 513-2853 to clarify a
staternent he made oni his sworn statement dated 4 June 2004. He wrote:
“In late Octobcr-nd o requested to interrogate & detainee

naked. The request was forward tund it was approved.”
1 aske“ he was sure he requested approval fmr_ He

told me:
“YES, As accurate as he can remember.”

1 then asked him if he was definitely sure it wad He sai he only dealt
wi d thatif 1t wasn’ t could have
bee

J, Ml
Investigating Officer

AGOO0D667

DOD 000754






FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY _
CITF7-TFF-1 (Abu Ghraib) 6 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD
SUBJECT: Tier | Logs and Requests for Exception
1. FoU0) On 6 June 2004, S > C/US A. TIDC approached the
undersigned and volunieered that he kept muldple records of several old operations fijes.
Within these files are multiple logs concerning detainee movement within Tier 1. He
also provided several requests for exception to IROE. ived at JIDC ip -
January 2004. He does not know the |ocation of any other records not already previously
located.

2. (FOUOQO) I assumed control of all documents that pertained to the timeframe 15 July
2003 10 31 January 2004,

3. (U) PQC is the undersigned.

Investpgating cer

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

AGOOO06GES
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PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

| AUTHORITY; - Tithe 10 UST Saction 301; Tiike § USE Saction 2851 £0. 9387 dewnd Nevember 22, 1543 /3K

PRINCIPAL PURPDSE: To provida commanders snd lw stlorcament ofhoists with meses by which information mey be acturataly identified.

AGUTINE I.IS.ES: ' Your socasl $acunty nimber is used as an sddibonalaitemate means ol wantification to faciitste fiing and ratneval.

DISCLOSURE: Discioyure of your SDCK! SEELTTY numbrr 15 volunfary. :

1. LOCATION 2. DATE /YYYYMNDD} 3. TIME 4. FILE NUMBER
Abu Ghraib, krag. APO AE 09335 2004/04/2 151

£ WIDDLE NANE 6. 55N — 7. GRADE/STATUS
e o

B. DAGANIZATION DA ADDRESS
CACI, Abu Ghraib Correctional Facility, Abu Ghraib, lrag, APO AE 09335

g.
— . WANT TD MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT LINDER OATH:

I arrived at Abu Ghraib on 15 October 2003 work as 2 screener with in and out processed detainees. When 1 first armived o Abu
Ghraib, 1 received a one week of inprocessing. The inprocessing included orientation o the area, briefing on buterrogation Rules
of Engagement (IROE} and | si?cd the IROEs, | felt | was very knowledgeable of what [ could or could not do. 1 received
Geneva Convention training at CRC but not at Abu Ghraib. It was a bit confusing as to who was in charge. [ was 10ld the 519th
was in charpe but the 205th was in charge of the entire site. 1 did not wimess or know aboui any detainee abuse, any photos
taken or the use of dogs.

Q. I?qo you bave anything to add to this statement?

A. No ‘
T R T T TR T A S v i SLatcmcnrJJI/HHlII!h'IIIIHHIIHH!IIIHIIIIIIHI/IIHIIIIIHHIH-!/

PAGE 1 0F _55_

10 EXHIBN ‘ 10 INITIA ON MAXING STATEMENT

ADOIYONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE KEAGING “STATEMENT OF TAKEN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH RDDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INTTIALS OF THE PERSON MAKING THE STATEMEN T, AND PAGE NUMBER MUST BE BE INDICATED.

DA FORM 2823, DEC 1988 DA FORM 2823, JUL 72, 15 DRSOLETE e
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AFFIDAVIT
' . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS DN PAGE 1. AND ENDS ON PAGE g LLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
RECTIONA-ANG HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE

BY ME. THE STATEMENT 18 TRUE. { HAVE INITIALED AtL ZDFSECTI
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT 7561y WITHDUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT

THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION. LINLAWTUL IMLUENCE/0R U

{Sipnarure of Parson Making Siarermant)

WITNESSES: ) Subscribed snd swom 1o before me, a person wuthorized by law to
sOMmmister naths, this 271 day of &T‘I l . ?_00 Y
at A l‘Jk Ghra: b

(Signature of Person Administeing Osth)

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

0 S| menistering Oath}

UCRT, Ardacle 130G

(Authonty To Admimister Oaths)

OAGANIZATION DR ADDRESS

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMEN -‘—
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PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT 7

AUTHORITY: Tithe 10 USC Saction 201; T 5 USC Section 2951 £.0. 9397 daled November 22, 1943 /SSA/.

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provade corynanders s i shorceman! of oS with maacs by whith ifermation may e acoursiely ientibed.

ROUTINE USES: Your social secueity number is used as an sdditionsl/shernate s of identilicalion te Laciitate Bing s retreval.

DISCLOSURE Dusclosure D) your 300081 3ECUNTY RUMbET 5 YORNHIBAY.

T_ LOCATION T2 DATE ;rrmfm 3 TNE - 2. ALE NUMBER
DARMSTADT, GERMANY 2004/05/ f 1628

[ 5. LAST NAME, FIRST NA NAME 6. SSN — 7. GRADEISTATUS
SPC

. ORGANIZATION OR ADQRESS
302nd Military Intelligence Group, Heidelberg, Germany APO AE 09102

)
— . WANT TO MAXKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER CATH:

1 arrived at Abu Ghraib in Jaic November 2003, 1 am a 98J and when | arrived at Abu Ghraib [ was assigned to a Tiger Team for
about a month. | was then assigoed as the analyst who research, put questions together for the interrogators, and scheduled the
interrogators with detainees. When we first arrived we received training on the Interrogation Rules of Engagements (IROEs) and
signed the the IROEs. These IROEs were posted on the wall next to the Inierrogation Coptrol Elements. We knew what we could

do W) ouldn‘t do but we did not know what the MPs could or couldn't not do in their arca. There was one time when
eld a formation and told everyone not to Ao it or you will be caught. We did not kmow what the incident was o
y did what. | knew you couldn't abuse detaines. That was just common sense. [ knew pictures were not atlowed. This

was posied on the wall. [ never saw any photos or videos of detainess. The only thing | saw was the use of sandbags over the
detainces head. 1 never heard or had any knowledge of M1 telling MPs to “soften-up” or abuse a detainee 1o get them ready for
the interrogation. | had heard prior to my arriva! that the MPs would wet the detainzes and get them cold. Then they would take
the dewsinees (o the booth (1 never personally witnessed or heard first hand).  Dog were used 1o walk down the haliway, but never

EO In e booth. I do remecmber secing a naked detainee against the wall in TIER 1B. The MPs were getting him
wel, as with me at the time. This occurred sometime in December. 1 didn't sell anyone because 1 didn't know
5S¢0

what MFP! or not do. I had the perception (de not know where 1 got the perception from) that the MPs did this when a
new detainee arrived. As 302nd M] we weren't atiached 1o the unit there. My tearn would go t as our inmedite]
SUpCrvisor .

Q. Do you have anyiuag else W add o tlus statement?

A. Ne
LRI EEELE 1L TERG of Statemment/ NIRRT TR BRI T E D

Bllows

0 EXHIBIT i Y1OINITIALS OF PEASON MAKING STATEMENT
! FAGE | OF FAG
ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE NEADING “STATEMENT OF TAKEN AT DATED
THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL FAGE MUST BEAR THE WITIALS OF THE PERSON MAXING THE STATEMENT AND PAGE NUMBER MUST BE 5 INDICATED,
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. STATEMENT [Coatswe/

AFFIDAYDY

1 _HAVE READ OA HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1. AND ENDS O DERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY M{ THE STATEMENT 15 TRUE FHAVT INITIALED ALY CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INTIALED THE BOTTOM GF EACH PAGE CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THS
STATEMENT FREELY WITHDUT HOPE GF BENEFIT OR REWARD. WITHOUT ~Ri AT OF PONISHMENT, AKD WiTH . DARLAWELL INFLUERTE. R UNLAWFL 3HOLCTMENT.

WITHESSES Subscbed #nd ywom To belelz me. a person suthorued by law 1o
adnaester oaths, (s Hith  awyal MAY 2004
i DARMSTADT. GERMANY

ORGANIZATION DR ADORESS x1AarurE of Pt son Adurovsieng Uaid!

{1rped Name of Person Admwsierve (Taih)
CChJ), ARTICLE 136

GRGANIZATION DR ADDRESS {hanttursty Tu Admmuster Qaths)

INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT
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PRIVACY ACT ETATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Tithe 10 USC Section 301; Tige § USC Secuon 2051; £.0. B357 sswd November 22, 1943 (SSN/.
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: T provide commanders snd isw entfofcement officiall with mesns by which infermation may be accurstsly dentitied.
NOUTINE UBES: . Your sociel sacunty number is Used A5 a1 sddiionsliaitamuts meant of identification to taciitsts fiing and ratvival,
DISCLOSURE: Dizclosurs ‘of your social security number is volurtary.
1. LOCATION i 2 DATE fYyYYMMOD! |3. TiME 4. FILE NUMBER
Mezo Pask Springfield, VA 2004 /08124 -
DLE NAME €. SSN P. GMDEISTE; us
8. ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS
CI Detachment Zama, S00th M1 Group, APO AP 96338

. WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER DATH:

of tbe Terrorin, Foreign Fightcrs and Exgemi
o my team, bt pot all &t the seme time:

1 arrived at Abu Ghraib (AG) on 21 October and was assigned as as the
ﬂm IhGnDC. A‘vmm“]mmfo ‘1 L UELL]

Chief

| personne:. il 2d o ﬁ::igzwm e oovcatanon. 1o ROD,
, a8 0l all BEWIY amvang personne], w 0 ; . !
wmhhuwhhcmmxdmﬂmﬂhwcc experienced m assignmedts. locoming

perscnnel had to acknowledge in writing they had been informed of and understood the IROEs, 1 did not have any concerns over |-
the TROE and was pleased to see that ceruin procedures, especiddly sieep ivarion, had to be approved by L'i-'g Sanchez. Sleep
management lechnique and process war being developed as | was leaving G O and | had woodered how it was worked out and
put into practice It was good 1o scc that a higher approval authority (LTG Sanchez) was requaed.  The TROEs wrre posted in
numerous places and were quite conspicuus. 1 do pot recall if the in processing involved reading the 12 October Memorandumn
signed by LTG Sanchez. We were aware of the techniques and procedures that required approvals, especially those that
approval by the CG. Loterrogators and first Line supervisors knew to ask if they were uncenain op any of tbe approval :
My duties called for me 10 pa.ﬂ.iciﬁ:: directly in interrogauons as well as observe the interrogations conducted by perscane] in
about any violations of the IROEs. On eme i

my section. | did not observe or

asked about #t and was told they were being used for ap inierrogation. 1 had been told by the genera) procedhires
for dogs: they had to be requested and approved with ao IROE excepi icy memo , could 1ot be in the booth,
only present 1o the arca and the dogs could not touch the used the dogs, said be had requestad approval. |
did not see the approval, bu! knew that the SOP was tha WOl have given the go abesd if she had not received
the proper awhonty. At one ume | had requesicd appro usc slccp management anxd to use the MP dogs b did not employ
¢ither as the approval was 0ol received in a timely manner it was noi until 6 weeks afier 1 it that the approvai came
through  { did pot see the writien approval but was informed that it bad been approved. The process for obtaining approvals was

who sent it o ho would i nurn forward st thru the Deputy Commander to C2Z/JTF-7. As far as | know there was

-| no racking sys secuon level - | put the request 1o the distribuien box and checked bner to see if it was gone. If it was
zo longer there, | assumed that ops bad forwarded i, smce 1t was not rerurned to me. We were transitioning from a paper/bhard
COpy SYSiCIn 10 ab auiomated System had been put in place for recording and tracking the detainees. The maneuver ticment was
supposed 10 send the detauee with 3 caphure Wz and prehuminary screetung info when the detapee was forwarded to w1, Detajnees

that the munw lo request @ in wring an accordance with the interrogation pian and submir it 10 the section beader

of micliigence mterest were put oo "MI liold” as soon as they were identified as such. Owr screesers would take the otk
iy the delinee and prepare a screetung review which was forwarded 10 the magistoate, who in turn packer
w the operations folks. There the info (identifying mfo, caprure dan, location, ¢ic) was into the

compuics sysiem by the AG Number, the ISN Number and cross referenced 1o pame. The hard copy dossier was then passed to
the Secuon leaders who parceled them out 1o the tcams. Most of the time we cross checked the hard copy wilh the dats base o
make sure the wafo had been entered. The imerrogators entcred follow up daw from the i j00 process as they progressed.
1 am not sure if the data basc can be assessed from ouwide lrag. A tivillan woman named aaveled 10'the various
wruts gaintmg them on the system would be the best person 1o contact about that accessi iometric Automated Tool (BAT)
data base.Higher pnignry M1 bold detaipees would be wierrogated as soon as pouiblc.m&.h:r MI hold detainees could
concervably be beld for up 10 fwo months before bewng wterrogated. During Oct and Nov the pace was very bectic at AG - in fact
1 was "crazy”. 14 1o JB bours days were the porm. We bad consiant monar atacks and other types of barassing fire xd the
mapcuver elements were luerally flooding us with new dewinees  As we finished interrogations and felt we had exhausied
intelhgence value we forwarded the packets H Assesyment Branch for processing and cotuideration for release, The
the D

DAB memo would be filled out and put mio and processing. | could check the data base from my

1ecoon and see if the memo had been accep
N MAKING STATEMENT H
PAGE t OF PAGES

10. EXHIBIT - 17 INTIALS DE R
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|ADDITJDNAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT
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STATEMENT or—__ TAKEN AT _Springfield, VA DATED _2004/05/24

9, STATEMENT (Continued - ) :

1 observed or heard about some out of the ordinary procedures as explained below. One detainee in an unrecalled block (where the
Iragi Police were held when the round up was conducted) was handeuffed to the cell bar - he could move a short distance and
could sit down but was handcuffed in such a manner that his movement was scmewhat testricted. He was restrained in this
manner because be had tried 10 anack one of the MPs who had been searching his cell for drugs. On another occasion | observed
another detainee in Biock LB being put through a physical tramning session by the MPs by having to carry water jugs back and
forth, up and down the hallway. Anotber occasion involved a high value detainee we knew was coming in for interrogation. He

told us that he bad cold water thrown on him and when estioned him on the details we found that he had been given
a shower and all we had was cold water. This detainee has recently been quoted in the London Times about the cold
water incident and said he had been beaten and hit in his mowth™ We acrually favored him and treated him quite well, with extra

rations and cigareties, eic to have ham feel like he was being favored and to keep him talking. The mouth incident was actually a
tooth infection and we had made sure be had demial care. This particular detzines had been in Kurdish conro! for sorme time

before he was trans o us. f the resulis of the Red Cross visit was a stipulation that all detainees had to be dressed in
Orange jumpsuits. made a comment that it did not stipulate how mygh of a jump suit so be reporiedly cut off
the sleeves and legs and made it 10LD two picces for the detainee 10 wear. At the tim working a "special project” and
‘teported directly to COL Pappas and did it 1o one particular detaines who was a high level al Qaeda operative. Op

another occasion we experienced a slight problem when we retumed a detaipee to his cell from the wood site. This detainec was
always hostile and arrogant. On this particular occasion he | ainst the interrogator and right after jumped vp and
down in place (as would a small child throwing a tantrun). Mw-l that because of this, the detainee woudd "have a new
look™” - the next morning his bead was shaved. : .

I never saw any abuse or humiliation of prisoners by either Army personnel or OGA personnel. } do not know of any

ized use of guard dogs for interrogation. I aever saw any unauthorized photos or videos of detainees. However, when

%‘m processed, 1 was wld be tock a picture of mﬂd that he was told to delete it, be was not allowed to

e pictures. He immediatcly deleted the pictare.  Later was taking a picture of a departing female in the ops
shop and 1 told him to delete the pboto, which he did. 1 am conllben all my Soldiers or civilian/contract interrogators would
bave come 1o me (o repont any humiliation or abuse. [ am that most of the ather Soldiers and civilians/contractors would
also come to me, as they had a sense of trust in me, 1 kpew Jiffrom a previous assignment, but oo this tour he was oot assigned
to me and we did not work together. I feel be is arrogant cocky and he did not talk to me. 1 saw him io the booth on
occasion, but did oot really gbserve his work. 1 beard about his attitude from otbers but never heard problems about his
work. 1did not work wi and did not hear anything adverse about his work. was very confident,
almost arrogant. He felt he Should bave been in charge and for a military interrogator and not have 1o listen o a
SGT or S5G. 1 never heard any complaints about his work, as very reliable and 1 would have believed him if
he carne to me about observing any abuse - ke never did so. Te my Soldiers would have dooe 50. 1 saw them on a
daily basis and by ekly section meetings. On one occasio was walking a detainee from his cell and 1 was
escorting them. had hooded and cuffed him and rurned 1o walk down the stairs. The detainee lost his balance
ad already returned to the ICE but two soldiers saw this and itunedia ried if to me. | immediately informed

It was an accident and not deliberate. She immedsately addres the MP shifi NCOIC about the

was always bragging and stretching the muth. Toward the ead o mber he was working as an analyst
He pal'd around wi
supposed to do or not do, s it

ave received an Arucie 15 for drinking. 1 do not know if he ever worked wi
t the MPs had more ieeway than we did, but the MPs should also kmow right fromm wrong. The i.m.-.rmgnmi iiimd know what

Interrogators might not know what the MPs were doing or what they w
they are aliowed to do and what they cannot do. Q: ls there anything else you would like 1o add? A: N
ST TEnd of Statement IR NI LT TSR TR
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STATEMENT (Continusd/ ' , /

il

N OTHING
e
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f FOLLOWS

/.
e
/
4 N
S N

AFFIDAVIT

L , HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS ON PAGE 1. AND ENDS ON PAGE . TFULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. {HAVE INTTIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. ) HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR AEWARD, WITHOUT
THREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERCION, UNLAWFUL INFLLIENCE, OR UNL AWFUL INDUCEMENT.

{Signeture of Parson Making Statem

WITNESSES: Supscribad ahd swoin 10 belore me, a parson suthaorized by law to
sominister osths, this 24 day of May 2004
at Springheld, VA )

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

Sipnature of Person Adminstenng Oath)

{Typead Name of Perzon Adminisiering Dath)
UCMIJ, ARTICLE 136

ORGANIZATIDN OR ADDRESS : [Authority To Admimisier Oatha)
lINITIALS OF PERSON MAKING STATEMENT H
PAGE oF 3 AGES
. ]
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PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: : Tiths 10 USC Sectinn 301; Tith § USC Sacuen 2951; £.0. 5397 sared Nevambwr 22, 1943 /55K,

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide Cormmanders wd ke enforcament of fcssls with mases by which informtion nry e CELX Rty entifiad.
ROUTINE USES: Your sacisl uacurity nombar i vsad ax g0 additionallaitamate means #f identfication bo faciitate Fing and retreval.
DISCLOSURE: Disciovure of your $ocial SECWity mumber 13 roRLBTY.

t. LOCATION 2. DATE AYYrrams; . 3. TIME 4. HLE KUMBER
0SJA. DARMSTADT, GERMANY 2004/05/ 1798
7. GRADE/STATUS

RST NAME, MIDDLE KAME 6 SN

3. DRGANUZATION OR ADDRESS
G2, HQ USAEUR, Heidelberg, Geramny APO AE 05102

) . _
4 . WANT T0 MAKE THE FOLLOW!NG STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

1 arvived in Eraq the third week in April. 1 was assigned initially as the G2 Planoer, then s the V Corps Deputy G2Z. Once MG
FAST became the C2, 1 went to C2 Operations and eventually became the C2 Chief of Staff. 1 traveled to Abu Ghraib
approximately five times from early October to Late January before 1 departed country on 6 Feb. My visits were related to
checking on the support for CACI contracted personne! at the site. | had o relationship with the TITAN Conrract, though the
CJTF-7 Language Manager (oot the CFLCC contract officer) felt under me. 1 do pot recall who was the particular individual that
had overall responsibility or was the semior TITAN Contractor at Abu Ghraib, if there even was one. My focus from a linguist

| perspective was on getting requiremeres from the units filled by CFLCC. 'V Corps was alrcady a user of a CACI contract in place
but it was for force prolection, countsr wrrotism and analytical siots. The vehicle used for the interrogation and screening
services in CJTF-7 was under an existing Army coptract that CIJTF-7 did not have purview of. The contracting office was Fort
Huachuca. The first tume we began considering expanding the Statement Of Work on the existing contract was in the summer of
2004. The year prior when the TPFDD and the Reguest for Forces for the war plan were being drawn, we identificd a shortage off
HUMINT and Countcrintelligence assets to conduct Corps and Division level operations. We identified the shortage and
FORSCOM had already begun the mobilization of numerous reserve units,. We knew the reserves' mobilization would most likely
be for one year and ultimately we had to look at who would replace these units.  As the ground phase of the war ended and
Stability and Support Operations (SASO) began, the pace of raids and mumber of captured personnel was increasing through the

| summer. The Tactucat HUMINT Team and interrogation operations were quickly becoming the "core” of the SASO intelligence
efforl. The Corps and divisions did not have enough asscis 10 screen and imerrogate all detainees being captured in a timely
manner o provide actionable imelligence. The demand for interrogation results was intense at times as the leadership struggled
with defining the cmerging threat. The screening of detainees at the tactical level was pot being done duc 10 a shortage in sssets.
The divisions peeded their Tactical HUMINT Teams out with the maneuver assets, gathering intelligenee for their pext
operation/raid. Detainees would arrive at the theater interrogation facility without proper screening, no background data, eic,
malong intertogation difficult.  Around July 03 we began looking at options for future M1 resources/rotations. We beld a mid
level conference and knew there were minimal HUMINT assets avaiiabie long term becanse they had alrcady been mobilized (and
pending dernobilization in about 6-8 months), or commilled w other operations such as OEF. We began looking at the option of
possibly filling the HUMINT and CI shortages at static locations such as division/theater interrogation facilities with civilian
COmract services ta augment the military personnei. The Thpater Lateryopation, Facility was in Baghdad Intcrnational Airport
(BIAP), Camp Cropper a! the tume. Once ume at Cropper, myself and some other senior
interrogators sal down to discuss the possibility of integranng tivilian contraciors (former iterrogatoss and screencrs) into the
operation. Everyone agreed it made sense and. evelo H ent of work (SOW). [ dlso discussed the concept

with 205th MI Bnigade personnel, specifically @ : ii on the C2 saff such as COL
BOLTZ. | worked the SOW and would discuss it wi &s wec went through versions. The
SOWs were acrually for more than screening and imerrogations.  Ln June, V Corps was not fully staffed to become the CITF-7
and did not have the resources required,  Within the C2, Coalition partners began giving us siaff but we didn't get any significant
fill from other services for months, with the excepoon of the USMC. For instance, we did pot have an officer really qualified to
e a G2ZX/C2X until late September. It was a hectic time. Many in CJTF-7 looked to coniracting solutions to provide services.
As examples, we nteded to siand up ap open source acalysis cell, whick started with reserve component personne] and ultimately
transitioned 10 contractors, the same with oyr SSO shop and Jocally employed persons (LEP) screening effort. For instance, we
developed the concept 1o hire LEP screeners for vening local nanonals being employed by the US military (as done in the Balkans)
so that some military Cl assets could be freed for operational missions. Al previously stated, the number of cnemy personnel
being detained by units was too large for the assets on the ground (and growing}, and the detainees were often nol being screened
or processed fast enough. Often when the detainees came in to Camp Cropper, many were being dropped off without any
paperwork. This was often duc to the lack of resources at the divisional and below levels. We looked at using coplact, services as
databasers/analysts, screencrs and interrogators 1o belp alleviaie this shortfall, The package we put together for

19. EXNIBIT 1. INITERLS QF PERSON MAKING S1ATEMENT
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| STaTenent o¢ ——mnm _DARMSTADT, q___.E mmn  _2004/05/14

For the theater Jevel, we needed
amalynts. The SOWs were staffed
moncy for the contract was

[more iRISTTORAIOTS, 50 the package tely 6 x screcners
in July. The final approval forthesowlandf\mdm;pvu_lthCG, .
MIPRed in A receive the first hires in %L, vIwaIL. LTwo review all resumes and would
forward 10 orm.hwmmm_mdmnwﬂdm#m. There were many
resumes tha Dol eves cons munu;konmhrgqmd.mum_wmmmmwm. We did specify
in the SOW employees had 10 have the right skills such as pnoer .Vllﬂ_dmelc.m&nemployeu!’ellmd:r
focal unit SOPs, regulations, etc for inlerrogation operaticns. Both I reviewed the resumes as 2 QC; | could
never say 100% because life dowrrange was hectic and busy. :
the resume; such was the personal and professionsl relationship I had
would approve the individual o come 10 theater based on the resume quali i _lda! o
CACI actally conducted interviews with those mesting the requIrements. mmmdid_nptspec:fythnmmcwhdmbeiﬁ
done. Those hired would travel to a CRC where they would receive their equipment and training. {1 do pot know what the spec
ini i but would assume the Geneva Coavention was covered as a general topic). 1 did meet with the
and 1 bad » daily relationship on a range of & ) and discussed the integrasion of the
standpoini. I belicve it was clear that the conactorns
or ] did (he sarpe-with the Divisions. Once in theater, the first green
suiter they saw was usually when Ciey arrived w the nnduni_l.hemmmﬂythemmymueyon ite was th:
* - | one whe mel them first at BIAP and arranged movement 1o the unit. 'We told the units that the contraciors weTe Jusl anct
that belonged to them; shnﬂumconp:mnnmmm:umwumumw!hnmmmw. 1
Kknow there was a 205th M1 Brigade training program at Abu Ghaib, but I do not know its content. The contract did nat specify
how a comractor could be fired or what sicps needed 10 be taken. If someone left, | tried 1o find out why, but 1 cannot say that
was always the case or always possible. 1also can'1 say that I acrually sai down with 205th leadership and laid out bow the firing
process went if any comractor did not perform to standard. But 1 believe they knew 1o go 10 me If there ever was a probiem that
could not be resolved on site - we (the Bde and the G2/C2 suff) were a close team. [ oaly know of one individual fired due 1o her
questionable suitability, and bt was a staff position, and ] direrted the firing based on statcments provided by the staff section andy
supervisar. She made inappropriate sexual comments, lacked the appropriate clearance asd refused o respect military rank. She
did not follow the CAC] rules of conduct, and CACH wak swift action 10 remove her. There was an aoalyst who was reporied by
the ynit chain (302d M1 BN) 10 have used alcobol one night (before the CACI rules of conduct were eatablished); that individual
was appropriately reprimanded by CACL, with my full inowiedge and spproval or their action. I have no other imowledge of any
problems with performance of CACI employees. There were some wha :.hawed.\:lpnduwhmmconqul_sndquk. That
was 20t 31 All urprecedented, because we were used 10 TITAN linguists quitting all the time becsuse of the coaditions xince the
beginning of the war. CACI did move some personnc] between sites due W mibor issucs such as imternal personality disputes, or
to balance out teams berween theater and divisions. However, | was never made aware of any problems with
Ghiraib regarding their conduct or performance from CAC] or the usit chain of command. Feedback that 1 got
and COL Pappas was always good regarding their performoance 1 can say that when 1 visited Abu Ghraib, my inwi
vou didnt gt a good feeling. 1 didn't see many mid level jeadership or above on the MP's side. Conditions were very austere,
with seemingly lax secunty/siandards. | did have complaints from the copract screeners that they sometimes had 1o do prisoder
escort, when the detainess initiaily arrived ai the holding area and were being i 'y are pot Tequired to do) and

o/ KTATEMENT [Comcima) ' . - ’
\Pﬁ%wnfarmxﬂbhm.@xm. and 2 x analysts/databascrs.
s for | o

training
'205th §-3 .
Conirac unis, from both a s
‘|belonged to the unit, and worked for the ynit. Ei

wanted to be armed for se)f defeose. | reponed the issue i COL PAPPAS they resolved it. 1 also
informed the C2, BG(P) Fast. At the time | left Irag, the issue of wrming ion was still under
consideration, pending theater policy. The Ml personne] | interfaced with were very professi i [

- Jconditions. | belicve COL PAPPAS and staff were doing their unpost 1o § . ome of the
hardest working individuals there, a real professional. Regardi 1did a intuitive feeling
|about what he was doing somctimes, though pothing tangibic. F . B¢ took me af the facility and | lcf thinking, "1s
Ihe really an MP or is be M1 (] jater found out he was CA, former MD)?"  He seemed to spendt an inordinate amount of tione
concerned with detemiios operations, vice interrogation. There were some professional issues between him and COL PAPPAS.
tCOL PAPPAS never came out and wld me, but thro " ty, ] knew there was some tension between the twa, but
ido not belicve it was related to inappropriate bebavior tepresented himsel! ax running imerrogstion operations
| and we all undersiood mtm::dt\bu Ghraib. At some poant (around DEC 04) COL PAPPAS made it known that

he was not comfortable wi 1 belped facilitair the move from Abu Ghraib o job within the C2.
Q. Do you have anything ¢ ] satemend?
A. No

L i 358 Sul.eme:m'HIIIJ’I!IIllﬂIIIIIIHIIIHHIII!III!IIIIIIIIIHIII!I.‘IIIIII.

\ .
Inumu OF PERSON M

mE 2 o 3 emm
PAGE 2, 04 FORM 2023, OIC 1310 , i v
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B. STATEMENT (Cantinwed/

FEIDAVIT

L . HAYE READ OR HAVE HAG READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINS DN PAGE 1, AND EMOS ON PAGE FULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTWRE STATEMENT MADE
8Y ME. THE STATEMENT IS TAUE. | HAYE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AMD HAVE INTTIALED THE BOTTOM OF EACH PAGE CONTANING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS
STATEMENT FREEL Y WiTHOUT HOPE OF BENEFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT THHEAT DF PUNISHMENT, AND WITROUT CRERCTIN, U/ . DR UNLAWFUL SNOUCERENT.

WITNESSES: Sebscubad and sworn 10 beiore me, & person sutharirsd by ew to
adraruster oathy, thi 14th  deyo! MAY 2004
st DARMSTADT, GERMANY

ORGARIZATION DR ADDRESS
{Typuct Naime of Farson Administering Gath/
UCMJ, ARTICLE 136
ORGANIZATICN DR ADDRESS {Aurthartty To A ior
INITIALS OF PERSON MAKING 5T
Pt 3 oF 3 pAGES
PAGE 3. DA FORM 2823, DEL 1998 VRAPLYLID
AGE0000678
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Sworn Statement of (NN

Privacy Act Smicrnent
Autbority: 10 USC 301; 5 USC 2951; EO 9397, dated 22 Nov 43
Principal Purpose: To provide commanders sad lavw enforcement officials with meany by which information may be scourstely
identified.
Routine Uses: Your social sccurity oumber is used as an additional/ahernate means of identification to Iacilitate filing and retrieval
Disciosure: Disclosure of your social secwrity number is voluntery :

Location: Heidelberg, Germany
Date: 16 July 2004
Name;

. SSN:us
Rank: LTC :
Organization: V Corps, APO AE 09014 -
Q: What is your current duty ent?
W2 Vet

I am currently the Deputy G-2 for B&, USAREUR, Heidelberg, Germany
Q: What unit were you assigned to in Irag?

I originally deployed to Irag as the G-2 planner for V Corps which became CITF-7 in
JUN 03. For & short while, I was in the C-2, Ops. In OCT 03, I became the C-2 Chief of
S1aff under MG Fast. 1 dsparted Irag in FEB 04.

Q: Have you been interviewed previously about this matter?

Yes, I was interviewed by someone ot of the IG shop abo three and a half weeks ago.
I'can’t recall the name. I was also interviewed byHWR’I‘ Abu Ghraib.

Q: Do you recall attending the BUBs over there?

Yes, 1 would generally attend the BUB during mornings and evenings. Regarding the
comment that you were referring to, I can’t recall By specific comment being made by
LTG Sanchez. 1do recail one instance where we all kind of collectively stopped and
scratched our heads after a comment by the general, but ] honestly can't recall the context
of that comment. I do not ¢ven want to speculate as to what the substance of that
comment was.

Q: Do you recall a conversatiog you had with-

No, 1 don’t recall any discussion wit-b-bout a comment, though we talked
numerous times each day about lots of issue. It could have bappened, but I simply
cannot remember,
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Q: What was your understanding of the ROE for combat opcrations? For example, if US
Forces are engaged by a hostile force. The hostile force is armed and has fired upon US
forces, the hostile force is now maneuvering away from our forces, but has pot laid down
its arms and not indicated swrrender in any way, what would the ROE allow US forces o
do at that point?

1t sounds like at that point, the enemy is still an armed force capable of further Tesistance,
We could still engage it.

Q: What kind of oversight did you provide for any contracts in Irag? -

I'had no direct oversight of the Titan contract. CJTF-7 was a user of the contract. I had
oversight of the CJITF-7 language manager. My role was to identify requirements for
Iinguists Category I through 3. I did not perform oversight over the Titan Linguists. 1
Was more supervising the requirements manager than anything else.

As for the CACIT contract, while there was never a COR officially appointed in writing by
the Cont Officer, I was the clogest thing to being the COR for that contract,

Q: How many CACI contractors did you have there?

For phase 1 beginning in JUL 03, we started getting fills in AUG-OCT for detainoe
screeners, interrogators, personne) for the S50 shop, local national cmployee screeners
and open source intel analysts, This was sbout 45-50 employees (actual fill) of a
requirement of approx 70. By late DEC 03 to carly 2004, we had filled all these slots.
Phasc II expanded in part due to&}md_v or the JIDC. We had about 90
additional contractors including interrogation report writers, more intej analysts for the
JIDC and C2 staff, more CUHUMINT specialists, planners and foreign disclosure
officers. Many of these positions were still unfilled as | departed in FEB 04,

Q: What was the need for al] these contractors?

combined/jaint and SASQ environment, especially carly en. The CPA mission wus
larger than expected, there were numezous undocumented requiretnents that developed,

broad. We were staffing/directing marters from in the “weeds"” tactical, day-to-day
operations such as precise targeting of groups, through strategic
CENTCOM/Service/NCA level issues. We found ourselves faced with 8 range of issues
that were very different from those faced by a traditional Corps HQ. Frankly, we were
“‘covering down" on all sorts of positions with all sorts of MOS. Further, we were filling
positions with individuals who were much lower in rank than the positions calied for.

We had 55 or 50 joint stots and only the Maripes filled theirs, It wasn't until DEC 03 that
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we started to see USN and USAF fills of any significance, and those only came afier a
long fight and were almost always lower in grade than the requirement.

Three dynamics necessitated our use of contractors in intelligence:

1. CJTF-7 wanted to reduce green suiters” performance of some tasks where possible.

At first, during ground operations, HUMINT Ops were not & high priority compared to the
other inte} disciplines. The rate at which our wnits maneuversd made the HUMINT
gathered often OBE by the time it was reported. However, after we tramsitioned 10 SASO
and became relatively static, HUMINT became far more important and critical to the
operation. HUMINT became the “coin of the realm” as we determined the nature of the
evolving threat and developing insurgency, and provided intel support to raids and
precision targeting. At the same time we were sefting up :xumerous penmnent
bases/camps which required intel support to force protection, screening local nationals to
work at those camps, screening the MEK, population, screening Iragis for certain
positions of trust (BIAP, linguists, key government officials, etc) — the demand for
CI/HUMINT was very high. There was never coough and the demand was only growing.
Because of the demand versus availabili » Tactical HUMINT Teams (CT and
interrogators) were one of the most “emotional” assets to task organize within the CJTF,
usually resulting in GO level involvernent.

2. The detainee population began skyrocketing in summer 03, We did not have enough
2ssets 10 process detainees and extract timely, actionable intelligence at any echelon. It
was nearly impossible to speedily ransport, process and keep up with the number of
detainees captured during the dozens of raids being performed every day throughout the
AQ. We had whole groups of detainees that would amve at holding areas with no
specific information about the circumstances of capture other than the fact that they
might have heen invoived in, for exarople, a raid against a possible bomb-making cell.
Who was in the room with the material, vice who was just rounded up in the general area
was often unknown to the interrogator (an example). This made the subsegquent
Iterrogation inission very difficult, and was directly linked to a lack of screening and

HUMINT assets.

3. Much of our CI & HUMINT assets were from the reserve component, as well as a
significant number of our analysts. The RC assets were on & 365 day clock, and very
unlikely to be extended 1o a second yzar. Irecall several mid-level sourcing meetings,
and looking at 6-10 months down the road it was prefty clear that shortages would be
very likely in thesc areas once our RC assets redeploy. We knew that by late 03/carly 04
we would lose about 2/3 of our CYHUMINT assets to demobilization, and sourcing of
replacements was very unclear at the time. Other commands were looking at contracting
options (ic CENTCOM J2X was looking as a company (either ACS or SOS I can’t
recall)) and we knew GITMO was using contractors.

Q: Did you asscss the quality of the contractor personnel?
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Generally, the contractors were very professional and the skills/experience they brought
to the table were very good. 1 personally was able to assess contractors at Camp Viclory
on a near daily basis. At Abu relied on the JIDC/Brigade staff on the ground,
CCL Pappas,hn“ﬁey aiways had positive comments
about the CACI contractors. _

Q: Did you interface daily with contractors?

At Camp Victory, I had daily interaction with many contractors, specifically analysts,
8SO0 and local national screeners. Again, at Abu Ghraib, Itelied on the staff at that site
to fill me in on the duty performance of their contractors. [ made between 5 to 6 trips
there between the fall 0f 2003 gnd winter of 2004.

~Q: Did you have a formal systern to monitor contractors and validate their performance?

No, there was no formal system to monitor their performance, though there was an
informal process as indicated earlier. In retrospect, that's one of our biggest mistakes,
but we were pretty much consumed Tying to get personnel in, support esteblished,
operational, eic, all during combat ops. Everything I saw first-hand and heard from
others indicated that contractor performance was going very well. We did not get around

to establishing a formal system to monitor their pcrformance. 'We should have made that

happen. 1 was aware of only two problems throughout the contractor foree, one dealing
with an SSO employee at Victory who lacked the proper clearance and had duty
performance issues, and the second dealing with an OSINT analyst downtown who drank
alcohol in the Green Zone. The former resulted in CACI firing the employee; the 1stter
(though contractors were not under GO #1 per our SJA) resulted in a reprimand from the
company to the employee for poor judgment, and the institution of & CACI code of
conduct that all Irag employees had to review/sign which precluded the use of alchol,
among other common sense items. The only complaint I recall was about possibly
armung the screeners at Abu Ghraib, There were secundy issues out there which I
observed first hand that made many contractors desirc an individual weapon for personal
protection in the event of a riot or breakout attempt. This was still being staffed when |
departed, but was a valid concern. which Irelayed to MG Fast earlier. COL Pappas took

‘action lo mitigate the concerns, pending staffing, by ensuring that contract personne]
Wwere never required to escort detainees, as was bappening periodically due to a lack of
MPs at the screening point.

Q: Were contractors briefed on the requirements of the Geneva Conventions and the
CJTF-7 Intarrogation Memo? .

do not ba -hand infi 1 is matter. However, I was told h)h
man a CACI contractor in the C2X) that all
 Interrogators read the memo before going into the “booth.” [ also told about the

interrogator orientation program/brief (belicve developed b)ﬁ which included
raining on the Geneva Conventions as welj as 205" MI Bde SOPs, etc at Abu Ghreib; |
belicve contract personne] went through this orientation program.

AGQO000682

DOD 0007869



rola?

ap individual augmentes, soan after I got back from leave
elected him to be the JIDC director / OIC of

wWis ign between COL
if there was a
ict. When c"Pﬁof ive” tasking came

down in Dec 03 (a new requirement for a LTC), we mov over there.

to see my new baby.
interTogatiqp ops, 10

Q: What was the command relationship like at Abu Ghraib with the multiple command
structures there? .

Wha! I know was the MI chain of command over there was solidly under the 205® M1
BDE and COL Pappas. There was not much confusion as to the chein of command
within the MI chain. 1cannot speak to the other command relationship but there did
appear 1o be confusion with the MP relationchip.

Q: Do you recall working wu.'

Iinteracted wiﬂ-m a couple of occasions, but more so with (EEENEND

1 don't recall the name.

it a CACI contractor through a V Corps contract. He was embedded in V Corps as’
we deployed. His work is excellent. ‘When we wanted 1o hire contractors st in CITF-1,
we onginally looked to expand the V Corps CACI contract. However, we received
guidance 0ot to do so since we knew CITF-7 will be around a long time after we left. We
did not want the contract 1o be azsociated with a unit such as us that would redeploy from
the AO. One of the Vice Presidents of C-ACIﬁ:ul theve at the time and
suggested that instead of using the V Corps-contract that an alternate routc, was using the
Ft Huachuca contract. Nobody knew then that it was s DOI blanket purchase agrecment
at the time, vice Army. We assumed a Ft. Huachuca contract would be an Army contract,

Huachuca wound up blessing off on the proposed statements of work and CITF-7
provided funding. . '

Q: At Abu Ghraib, was there an individual respoi.sible for monitoning contractar
performance? |

Thete was no single person tagged with monitoring the contractors, though interrogation
oversight went through interrogation ops channels. ] went to 1o the BDE S-3 for
operational support or amployment issues or fecdback. | went to the Commander for
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issues related to command satisfaction with contractor performance. We had a senior
CA(I :mployccﬂon the ground as 2 “contract team leader,” 5o to
speak, as the direct POC for the M! Brigade.

Q: In your opinion, is the uss of coh!ractors in future operations a viable option?

Yes, although the command and contro) needs to be tight. The current active and reserve
component structure isn't sufficient, at least for CVHUMINT given current and
foreseeable OPTEMPO. QIF I seriously depleted us with regard to RC assets, as
discussed earlier.

It’s unfortunate that one guy might give the whole experience a bad name; contractors
bring unigue skills, experi:nce and backgrounds io complex operations. As an aside
] 'm 99% sure and ] confirmed this wi
y bired as 2 screener. This means he didn’t need to wve been a
Interrogator or equivalent. If a decision was made to put him in the booth for
interrogations, this was made intemnally at Abu Ghraib. I don’t know of anything from a
regulatory perspective that prevents a screener that demonstrates superior skills from
being used as an interrogator, but that is not the normn. ] do know that he did have
strategic debriefing training, but do not believe be was a formally trained interrogator.

- Q: Are the strategic icve) interrogators at INSCOM and DHS military or civilian?
Military I think, at least predominantly.
Q: Do we have a DA Civilian population of interrogators?

‘We have a GS132 intel series; but they arc gencrally not used/trained in that role to my
knowledge. There may be some special program interTogators.

As an aside, HUMINT assets in the AC have been greatly depicted from the force
stucture. At Corps level, there is supposed to be a Tactical Expioitation Battalion (TEB)
with an interrogation company. But most of the active Carps TEBs lost their
interrogators. Only the 18th Airborne Corps retained theirs — the 519" MI. There is a jot
of demand for tactical HUMINT operationally, but during force re-structuring, those
Corps and below asscts have often been used as bill payers.

Q: Does V Corps have an MP Brigade?

Yes, the 18" MP Brigade, but they were assigned and consumed by their missian of

- securing Baghdad. The 800 MP BDE was given the Abu Ghraib mission partly because
they advertised their services in the detention ops unit, as far back as our initial Planning
process and performed this role during the ground war for CFLCC. Also, they were nota
V Corps asset, they were retained by ARCENT.
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I,‘Pavc read this statement which begins on page } and ends on page 7.
I fully understand the contents of the entire statement made by me. The statement is true.
I have initialed all corrections. [ have made this statement freely without hope of benefit

or reward, without threat of punishment, and without coercion, unlawful influence, or
wnlawful inducement.

¥

(Signature of LT

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a
person authorized by law to administer
oaths, tlns[ yofJujy2004at

 GE

{location)

{Typed name of Person Admimstering Oxnth)

DUSC (KR G O CarPs oSSA

(Authority to Administer Oaths)
Sebo. ATy
7.
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CITF7-TF FAY 24 June 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT: Identification of CPT qz“ MP Company, as the Individual
Who Reportedly Assaulted an Iraqi Detamnee at Abu Ghraib Hard Site on 24 November 2003

1. On 23 June 2004 J§ rtic Investigating Officer (MG Fay
Inquiry), interviewed GT/E-5, USAR, 229" Military
Police Company, Virginia Beach, VA, conc ident h= reported to US Army Criminal

Investigative Command on 20 January 2004, in which he observed a US Army soldier choking,
dragging, and kicking an Iragi detainee in the Hard Site of Abu Ghyaib Detention Facility on or

about 24 November 2003. At the time of the inciden jdentified the individual
involved in the incide as a soldier because the indivi not dressed in full military
uniform and therefo ould not identify him by name or rank. Subsequent to the
iform with Captain's rank,
e

mcidcm,qsiw the individual again, this time in his full
but he did not sce the Captain’s name tag: qpresente
photographs of US Army Captains who were assigned at Abu Ghraib at of the incident.
The photographs were eight by ten inch color print outs of digital photographs obtained from the

Department of Defense {DoD) Common Access Card (CAC) database. The photographs were
presented to —;andomly and without comment, other than instruction l*
that he look carefully at the photographs to determune if any of them was the indivi e

observed choking and kicking the detainee at Abu Ghraib. All photographs were p ted
imultaneously andims allowed 1o peruse and study them at his leisure i

&immcdiatcly‘“and without hesitation idcnﬁﬁcdﬁUSAR,

MP Company, as the individual who he had observed choking, &1

bu Ghraib Hard Site on or at vember 2 fie i

om the nine photograp

choice, and tated he was “absolutely sure.” Inhis &1

2823, Sworn Statement, dated 23 June 2003, which stated the following:

“*At approximately 1050 hrs on 23 June 2004 investigato [
iine up of photo’s (sic). After reviewing the photo’s (sic) I identihe ;
digital photo #244410378 as the individual as discribed (sic) in the statement date an 04.

As a professional jailer for eleven years, the conduct and treatment of the prisoners were not 1o
standards. | have nothing clse to add at this ame.”

2. On 24 June 2004 icle 15-6 Investigating Officer (MG Fay
Inquiry), interviewedil [ISPC/E-4, USAR, 229" Military Police
Company, Virginia Beach, VA, concerning the incideft he reported to US Army Criminal

Investigation Command on 20 January 2004, in which he observed a US Army soldier swriking

and kicking an Iraqi detainee in the Hard Si Ghraib Detention Facility on or about 24
November 2003. At the time of the inciden entified the individual involved in the

“ h&s if he was sure of Bis
. rofessio
is a carrectiona! professional emptoyed by the State of Virginia, ecw orm
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incident only as a soldier because the individual was oot dressed in full military uniform and
Lhcrefor:h:ould not identify him by name or rank. Subsequent to the incideni

Hsnw the individual again, this time in his full uniform with Captain’s rank, but he did not
ce the Captain’s name mg.msentedme photographs of US Army
Captains who were assigned at Abu Ghraib at the time of the incldent. The photographs were

eight by ten inch color print outs of digital photographs obtained from the Department of

Defense (DoD) Commen Access Card (CAC) database. The photographs were presented \E
Jirandomly and without comment, other than instruction to he look carefully
e observed striking and

at the photographs to determine if any of them was the individ

kickiog the detainee at Abu Ghraib. All photographs were presented simultaneously and!SPC
fwes aliowed 10

d study them at his leisure. immediately and without
hesitation id:’miﬁc%USAR, 372" MP Company, as the individual
who he had observed stki d kicking a detainec at the Abu Ghraib Hard Site on or about 24
November 2003. Afie 'identifie m the nine photographs
Pskcd if he was sure of his choice, an stated that he was “100
cent sure.” In his civilian profession, SPC is a detective for the Newport News, VA, Police

Department. :executed DA Form 2823, Swom Statement, dated 24 June 2003, which
suated the following: .~ -

“On June 24, 2004, ] idcnﬁﬁec—mm a photospread (sic) provided to
me as being the unknown Captain described in my January 20, 2004 statement to CID

‘This is the Captain that ] witness beating a prisoner inside the hard site in Jate November
3. 1 have nothing further to add to this statement.”

3. as the Officer-in-Charge of the Hard Site facility at Abu Ghraib at
the time of the incident on 24 November 2003.

mey-at-law, Law Office
legal representative for
mnvestigating officer (MG Fay Inquiry) on 9 June 2

J wanted to cooperate with investigating officers, but that he would-
submit to an interview and make & statcment only if granted immunity. MG Fay declined to
accept onditional offer to cooperate and no further effort has been made to
intervie

5. POC is the undersigned at (703) 428-4822

Enclosures: ~
‘DA Form 2823, Sworn Statement, AR [5-6 Investigating Officer
d cuted by

DA Form 2823, Swomn Statement,
dated 24 Jun 04, executed by
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|H !orm !!!! !wl orn Statement,

dated 20 Jan 04, executed by

orm 2823, Sworn Statement,
dated 20 Jan 04, executed by

M!, Hc! ! !un !, Subject: Procedure 15
v o C N U
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SWORN STATEMENT
For uee of this form, sec AR 190-45: the propenant sgency m ODCSOPS

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Title 1O USC Section 307; Titie 5 USC Secton 2351; E.0. 8397 dated November 22, 1543 (SSA).
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide commanders and law enforcement officiais with means by which information may be sccurately
ROUTINE USES: Your sOCH security number is used a5 an additionalialernaie Means of identification to facilitate hing and reineval
DISCLOSURE: Disclos ure of your social security number is voluntary.

CATION 2. DATL 1Y, op) 3. TiM 4. FILE NUMBER

MG, WA Feoi0623 35
5. LAST NAME, FIRS MIDDLE NAME £. 55N 7. GRADESTATUS

&5
N OR ADDRES

a5 ¥ mp 0. \L%umﬂ\&m' V4

8.

| S WANT TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT UNDER OATH:

Ny ..
I Appeox tkiED] 05O ON B oz oy (weckan %@%& 4 L
of Puovy. AFER ®EVIEWWE THE Ruowl * Capras ey o

A THE oAl A Drekibeh 0 Re Swveumar DATED o .
THE CanuicT A “TEEATMEDT™ OF “THE Rsousts

PAL ek TR Revay
Gmm’i:‘u? ému‘m-: HAVE Newmg FE T oo ﬂrfs_z,’f'

NoTHDIE ﬁmows

10. EXMIBIT . INITY MAKING STATEMENT F
: M PAGE 1 OF PAGES

ADDITIONAL PAGES MUST CONTAIN THE HEADING “STATEMENT

TAKEN AT DATED

THE BOTTOM OF EACH ADDITIONAL PAGE MUST BEAR THE INITIALS OF THE PERSOMN MAKING THE ST A4 TEMENT, AND PAGE NUMBER
MUST 8F BE INDICATED

DA FORM 2823. DEC 1998 DA FORM 2823, JUL 72. IS DBSOLETE USAPA Y100
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STATEMENT o-_ TAKEN AT éﬂﬂ//; g DATED &E! |

-
;B\STATEMENT fContinued)

s

\ -

AN
e

~

S

‘ AFFIDAVIT
IF Pl . HAVE READ OR HAVE HAD READ TO ME THIS STATEMENT
WHICH BEGINT ON PAGE 1, AND ENDS ON PAGE

L JFULLY UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS OF THE ENTIRE STATEMENT MADE
BY ME. THE STATEMENT IS TRUE. | HAVE INITIALED ALL CORRECTIONS AND HAVE INITIALED THE BOTTOM Of EACH PAGE
CONTAINING THE STATEMENT. | HAVE MADE THIS STATEMENT FREELY WITHOUT PE OF BENRFIT OR REWARD, WITHOUT
THAREAT OF PUNISHMENT, AND WITHOUT COERACION, UNLAWFUL INFLUENCE. OR

# 1 Parson Aaking Stacemeat]

WITNESSES:

ribed and sworn 1o before me, m person stharized by law 10

satistet astis, this &3 day of  Suwd ' M

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS

ORGANIZATION OR ADDRESS thuironty To Adrninister Qsths)

INITIALS OF PERSON

PAGE PAGES

URAPA V1.00
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, SWORN STATEMENT
For wse of thia form, see AR 190-45; the proponent agency is ODCSOPS

FRIVACY ACT ETATEMENT

AUTHORITY: Title 10 USC Section 301; Title § USC Sectisn 2961; E.0. 5397 dated Novernber 22, 1943 (SSN).
PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: To provide commanasts and law eniorcement officials with masns by which informetion may be scewrntely
ROUTINE USES; Your sccial security numbet is used ss an sdditional/alternate rmemns_of identification 1o fecilitata fing and retrieval.
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